ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE EDUCATI ON STANDI NG COWMM TTEE
January 16, 2013
8:00 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Gary Stevens, Chair
Senator M ke Dunl eavy, Vice Chair
Senator Bert Stedman

Senat or Charlie Huggins

Senat or Berta Gardner

MEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nmenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

REGULATI ONS LI NKI NG TEACHER EVALUATI ONS AND STUDENT TESTI NG
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COWMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record.

W TNESS REG STER

M KE HANLEY, Conmi ssi oner

Depart ment of Education & Early Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed the new regul ation that pertained
to linking teacher evaluations and student testing.

JI M MERRI NER, Chair

Al aska State Board O Education & Early Devel opnent

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported the new eval uati on regul ati on.

BRUCE JOHNSQN, PhD, Executive Director

Al aska Council of School Adm nistrators

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported the new eval uation regul ati on.

ROB THOVASON, Presi dent
Al aska Council of School Adm nistrators

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE -1- January 16, 2013



Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported the new eval uati on regul ati on.

CARL ROSE, Executive D rector

Associ ati on of Al aska School Boards

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Addressed the potential inplications from
t he new eval uation regul ati on.

JOHN PI LE, Executive Director

Al aska Associ ation of Elenentary School Principals
North Pol e, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Did not provide testinony.

JOHN POTHAST, President

Al aska Associ ation of Elenentary School Principals

Sol dot na, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported the new eval uation regul ation and
provi ded options to consider.

ANDRE' LAYRAL, Executive Director

Al aska Associ ati on of Secondary School Principals

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported the new eval uation regul ation and
provi ded options to consider.

ADAM MOKELKE, Presi dent

Al aska Associ ation of Secondary School Principals

Wasi |l a, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported the new eval uation regul ation and
provi ded options to consider.

RCD MORRI SON, Presi dent-el ect

Al aska Associ ation of Secondary School Principals

Pal mer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported the new eval uation regul ation and
provi ded options to consider.

JOHN ALCANTRA, Director

Governnent Rel ati ons

Nat i onal Educati on Associ ati on- Al aska

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Updated the commttee on NEAA activities.

LADAWN DRUCE, Vi ce President

Nat i onal Educati on Associ ati on- Al aska
Anchor age, Al aska

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE - 2- January 16, 2013



PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Addressed concerns regarding the new
eval uation regul ati on.

TODD POAGE, Superi nt endent

Al aska Gateway School District

Tok, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported the new eval uation regul ation and
provi ded options to consider.

CHRI S REI TAN, Superi ntendent

Galena City School District

Gal ena, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Supported the new eval uation regul ation and
provi ded options to consider.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

8:00: 32 AM

CHAIR GARY STEVENS <called the Senate Education Standing
Committee neeting to order at 8:00 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators Dunleavy, Huggins, Gardner, Stedman, and
Chair Stevens. He welcomed the new nenbers of the Senate
Education Commttee and noted the individual Senators' varied
backgrounds in education.

REGULATI ONS LI NKI NG TEACHER EVALUATI ONS AND STUDENT TESTI NG

8: 00: 56 AM

CHAI R STEVENS introduced Commi ssioner M ke Hanley and presented
a brief summary of the new teacher evaluation regulation. He
noted a newspaper article regarding a study from the Bill &
Mel inda Gates Foundation and noted that involving students in
t he teacher evaluation process was the main point. He said there
were ways to attain the desired results by notivating children
to learn and identifying the best teachers that deserved reward.

8:02: 10 AM

M KE HANLEY, Comm ssioner, Departnment of Education & Early
Devel opnmrent (DEED), said he would discuss the new teacher
eval uation regulation and affirnmed that the new regul ati on woul d
strengthen the Alaska education process. He noted that public
corment made it clear that there was a |ot of m sunderstanding
around the new regul ation. He stated that continued effort would
be made to clarify the regul ation's paraneters.

8:03:12 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 3- January 16, 2013



COM SSI ONER HANLEY said the current policy was recognized in
state statute as a responsibility to ensure all students were
successful in their education and subsequent careers. He said
the DEED m ssion statenent set the target of inproved academc
achievement for all students. He addressed a 1996 statute that
designated |ocal school boards wth the responsibility to
i mpl enent an evaluation process based on eight cont ent
performance standards for teachers and ten content performance

standards for admnistrators. He referenced a list for the
Teacher Content/Perfornmance Standards and noted changes. He
explained that the standard: "A teacher can describe their

phi | osophy of education,” was deleted. He said the standard: "A
teacher hel ps students grow academ cally as neasured by | earning
data," was added. He noted that the new standard had caught the
nost attention. He explained that the reason for adding the new
standard was due to the fact that the other seven standards
focused on positive performance attributes and did not

specifically addr ess st udent | earni ng for next | eve
preparation. He stated that an affective teacher was provided
enhancenment and the opportunity for student | earning. He

affirmed that the public and parents expected students to be
prepared for the next step. He said the student-I|earning
addition would be a part of a teacher's eval uati on.

8:05: 30 AM

COW SSI ONER  HANLEY stated that there were three basic
regul ati on changes. He explained that the first change would
address cultural standards consideration during an evaluation.
He noted that the cultural standards were not specific and did
not mandate a teacher be scored. He detailed the regulations for
cultural standards would include a culturally responsive teacher
who incorporated the local ways of knowing and teaching. He
added that the relevancy to education occurred when teachers
used the local environnent and community resources. He said a
culturally responsive teacher worked closely with parents to
achi eve comon expectations between hone and school. He said the
teacher should recognize the full educational potential of each
student and challenge themto neet that potential. He noted that
the cultural standards consideration would not be assigned a
particular percentage or points I|ike the other content
st andar ds.

He said the second change would provide training for evaluators
to ensure inter-rater reliability. He explained that principals
woul d be considered as the evaluators for teachers. He noted
that teachers would not know what to expect from an eval uation
if principals were not conpared to other principals. He

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE -4- January 16, 2013



explained that it was critical that there be a comon
expectation for good teaching, best practices, and conparability
bet ween princi pal s.

8:07:15 AM

CHAIR STEVENS asked for M. Hanley to address the issue of
eval uation and to verify that the evaluation process occurred in
a classroom setting.

COWMWM SSI ONER HANLEY answered correct. He explained that the
current evaluation process required observation along wth
parent and student i nput.

SENATOR GARDNER asked the Conmissioner for the definition of
cultural standards in witing.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY answered that he would conply. He said the
previous definition of cultural standards was adopted by
reference and were relatively extensive. He explained that the
new regulation would clarify the cultural standards. He noted
that a statewide cultural standards nodel did not translate well
in urban and rural settings.

He said the last significant change was that student | earning
woul d be tied to a teacher's evaluation. He explained that the
change had received the nobst attention. He noted that student
| earning data was defined as neasurenents of a student's growth
during the time a student was taught by the teacher. He said
student learning referred to inprovenent and not proficiency. He
expl ained that goals remained for proficiency and success for
all students. He noted in the evaluation that every student
woul d not have to junp over a particular bar to be considered
proficient. He specified that the focus would be on the ability
to make gains towards the next level with each student. He said
one of the concerns DEED heard in comments pertained to special
education teachers being conpared at the sane |evel as teachers
who instructed high-level students. He explained that a special
education neasurenent would be wused to conpare student
performance when they wal ked-in and when they wal ked-out of a
cl assroom s sessi on.

8:10: 05 AM

He explained that the neasurenent conponents required nultiple
nmeasures of the student |earning. He noted that another concern
was voiced regarding the strict use of the Statewi de Test for
nmeasurenent. He explained that a single test was essentially a
snap-shot in tinme and tw to four neasures would be used to

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -5- January 16, 2013



neasure a student's growh while in the classroom He disclosed
that the neasures would not have to be formalized assessnents.
He said neasurenents could be curriculum based where a pre-test
was adm ni stered at the beginning of the year, a md-test at the
m ddl e of the year, and a post-test at the end of the year. He
explained that curriculum tests should be based on state
st andar ds. He noted an exanple of possible testing for
el enentary schools that were thenme based education and rel evant
education. He explained that a project could be used with a
pr oper rubric that nmeasured reading conponents, witing
conponents, or presentation conponents. He said a district would
have to ensure that a certain grade would perform the sanme test
at all schools. He disclosed that another inportant part was
that the neasurenments were in the aggregate. He explained that a
teacher's proficiency would be class based and not based solely
on an individual student's performance. He said there was a
requirenent to utilize a statew de assessnent and expl ai ned that
the current assessnent was the Standards Based Assessnent (SBA).
He said a statewi de assessnent test would have to adequately
measure valid growh from year-to-year. He noted that the
current SBA did not neasure valid year-to-year growth and would
not be used. He said DEED was in the process of developing a new
SBA for adoption in 2014-15 or 2015-16. He said the new SBA
woul d have the ability to adequately neasure growh from year-
to-year. He explained that a district wuld use the SBA at the
same percentage and wei ght as the other neasures being used.

COMM SSI ONER HANLEY addressed the flexibility in the standards'
| anguage and noted concerns that pertained to what a teacher
could not control. He said an exanple was the inability to teach
a student who does not go to school. He explained that the
objective was to attribute the neasureable growmh to a teacher
when it was appropriate while recognizing those things that were
outside of a teacher's control. He said districts would devel op
procedures based on criteria to accurately reflect student
growt h based on educator performance. He noted that the flexible
| anguage would allow a district to address student attendance
and issues outside of a teacher's control during the state
eval uati on process.

8:14: 55 AM
SENATOR DUNLEAVY asked if student inter-district nopvenent would
be taken i nto consi deration.

COW SSI ONER HANLEY answered yes. He noted that the state had a

significant transitory rate for students and it should be
considered in the evaluation. He noted that several principals

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 6- January 16, 2013



had remarked that the flexibility in the standards' |anguage did
al | ow consi deration for outside influences.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY sunmarized that teachers would continue to
be eval uated on each of the standards and noted the inclusion of
the student |earning standard. He explained that teachers would
be evaluated on each standard as to whether they were rated as:
Exenpl ary, Proficient, Basic, or Unsatisfactory. He noted that a
district would not give a teacher a Proficient rating if there
was a Basic evaluation rating in one or nore of the eight
standards. He stated there was no job issue or punishment that
required a step-in to fix a teacher. He explained that the end
result was a teacher would not have an overall Proficient
rating. He remarked that the Al aska State Board reviewed each
standard and was deliberate in their decision on a Basic
eval uation for an overall proficiency rating. He noted that new
teachers were recogni zed separately and were not expected to be
proficient in every aspect of teaching. He explained it could
take three or nore years for a teacher to becone proficient. He
commented that a Basic evaluation was strictly recognized as
Basic and no punishment was involved. He noted that a district
woul d be required to step-in and offer support if a teacher was
eval uated as Basic in two or nore of the standards. He explained
that district support was not specified, but a district had an
obligation to support their teachers and help them to becone
better. He noted that districts would be provided with the
flexibility to offer a specific plan of growh and support to
Basi c eval uated teachers.

8:18: 38 AM

He addressed the inplenentation tineline. He said 2015-16 woul d
be the first year that student |earning would be incorporated in
the evaluation. He noted that there was a lot of woirk in
i npl enmenting the regulation for the state and the districts. He
explained that the districts would have to identify the tools
and enact the proper evaluation system He said in 2015-2016 and
2016- 2017, 20 percent of a teacher's evaluation would be tied to
student learning. He noted that the percentages would increase
in 2017-2018 to 35 percent and in 2018-2019 to 50 percent.

SENATOR GARDNER asked if the teacher performance ratings would
ever be public information and avail able to parents.

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY answered no. He noted that the question cane

up several times during public comrent. He explained that it was
very clear in statute that teacher performance ratings were not

SENATE EDC COWM TTEE -7- January 16, 2013



subject to public information requests and were considered
private docunents.

8:20: 27 AM

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if there were pre-discussion evaluations
with prospective candidates that were neasured against a
t eachi ng performance rating baseline.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY responded not specifically. He said a pre-
di scussi on was appropriate and noted that districts were all owed
to determ ne what was appropri ate.

SENATOR HUGGE NS addressed the inportance of providing teachers
wi th cohort performance feedback.

8:22:38 AM

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY answered that he agreed. He said the current
system was subjective and |acked specific data to neasure. He
noted that there my be inherent disincentives when using
subj ective standards that do not drive teachers to take a next-
step. He explained that teachers had a lot of internal drive and
they continue to nove forward, but the evaluation system does
not incentivize the process. He remarked that there was also a
di sincentive for teachers who were doing a great job in noving
students towards the next level in addition to carrying the
students who required additional steps. He stated that he hoped
the new system would al so recognize the great teachers and the
wor k t hey were doing.

SENATOR HUGGE NS stated the inportance of nentors for teachers.

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY responded that DEED worked very closely with
their teacher and principal nentor program He said nentoring
was a key conponent to help teachers grow.

8:24:39 AM

CHAI R STEVENS comrented that he |liked the idea and presentation
from Conmi ssioner Hanley. He declared that it would only work if
teachers and principals buy-in. He addressed the big step
i nvol ved with student |earning data accounting for 50 percent of
a teacher's overall performance rating in 2018-1019. He asked
Comm ssioner Hanley if he felt confortable that 50 percent was a
reasonabl e expectati on.

COMW SSI ONER HANLEY answered that he was both confortable and

nervous about going to the higher level. He explained that the
hi gher | evel would create additional intensity and was

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 8- January 16, 2013



appropriate. He noted that the decision to go to the higher
| evel was done prior to the Bill & Mlinda Gates Foundation's
Measures of Effective Teaching (MET) Study. He explained that
the MET Study spoke to less volatility and nore accuracy when a
teacher's evaluation from student test scores was increased to
the 30 to 50 percentage range.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY asked if DEED had devel oping a tracking system
to correlate student data with teacher eval uati ons.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY answered no. He noted that DEED s intention
was to establish a tracking program from pre-kindergarten
t hrough the university systemto create a common identification
He explained that the goal would be to track both students and
affective teachers. He said the tracking program was on DEED s
tabl e, but the proposition was not easy.

SENATOR DUNLEAVY asked how the evaluation process would work
when teachers nove throughout the state during their careers.

COWM SSI ONER HANLEY responded that training principals would be
important in supporting the evaluation nodel at all schools. He
enphasi zed that the increased student data percentages would be
determ ned by tineline and not |ocation.

8:27:53 AM

SENATOR DUNLEAVY asked if an estimated fiscal note would be
presented. He inquired if DEED would ask for additional funds
for training and tracking systens.

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY responded that DEED recognized that tinme and
nmoney would be required for inplenentation. He noted that the
Governor also recognized that sanme requirenent. He explained
that there were three basic levels to consider: some districts
woul d nove forward with grant funding to develop a tenplate for
other districts, supporting principals, and supporting districts
to inplenent the program He said DEED did not have a fiscal
note tied to the performance standards change. He expressed the
belief that DEED had the grant nonies to get the programrolling
on tenplate and internal work.

8:29:11 AM

SENATOR GARDNER asserted that teachers, admnistrators and
famlies had opinions in every school as to which teachers were
the best. She explained that she did not know how accurate the
perceptions were and asked if DEED s current evaluation system
tracked well wi th popul ar eval uation systens.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -9- January 16, 2013



COWM SSI ONER HANLEY answered that the current evaluation system
provi ded students and parents wth the opportunity to weigh in.
He noted his time as a principle that he did not use student and
parental input as a specific criterion, but as a confirmation to
what he already knew. He noted that the MET Study acknow edged
the value of student and parent input. He explained that the
added input was part of a larger picture that included
observation and student data in order to create a good
eval uati on system

8:31:45 AM

JIM MERRI NER, State Board Chair, Al aska State Board O Education
& Early Devel opnent, affirmed Conm ssioner Hanley's presentation
and the inportance of addressing the details involved with the
new performance standards.

CHAIR STEVENS asked M. Merriner to address the tineline for
i npl enenting the higher percentage inclusion of student |earning
data for eval uations.

MR. MERRINER replied that he |iked the proposed tineline and the
built-in time to allow for reevaluation prior to inplenmenting
the higher percentages. He noted that Conmm ssioner Hanley
addressed the availability of a state assessnment for specific
grades and subject matters. He said the nunber of nmeasures used
by a district would dictate the inpact of the state assessnent
for a teacher's overall rating.

CHAI R STEVENS asked M. Merriner's to provide the commttee with
i nformati on on his background.

8:34:57 AM

MR. MERRINER answered that he was elected as the State Board
Chair in June, 2012. He said he had been on the Alaska State
Board O Education & Early Devel opnent for close to three years.

CHAI R STEVENS commended M. Merriner for his contribution to
education in Al aska.

8:35:44 AM

BRUCE JOHNSON, PhD, Executive Director, Alaska Council of Schoo
Adm nistrators (ACSA), explained that he also served as the
Executive Director for School Superintendents. He noted that
ACSA repr esent ed pri nci pal s, busi ness of ficials, and
superi nt endent s.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 10- January 16, 2013



DR. JOHNSON said ACSA felt somewhat |eft out of the process
during the early stages of the performance standards changes. He
noted that ACSA has becone nore involved in the process and
t hanked the Commi ssioner for his assistance. He said ACSA was
not afraid of accountability and noted the change across the
country regarding accountability. He affirned the demands from
Al askans to be increasingly accountable for the dollars spent
and the service provided. He explained that ACSA would be
partners in noving forward wth accountability. He disclosed
that he had attended a national neeting with admnistrative
cohorts that addressed the issue of inplenenting conplex teacher
and principal evaluations with a focus on student growmh. He
summari zed data from the nmeeting and noted that the process was
costly, time consumng, and conplicated. He noted that results
were mxed and the process would not be a nmagic-bullet. He
explained that a ot of work was required in order to inplenent
the program He expressed his gratitude to Conmm ssioner Hanley
for his willingness to neet wth superintendents and address
what would be required to nake the program a reality. He stated
that ACSA would feel nuch better when there was a full
understanding of things. He remarked that academ c perfornmance
may only be part of a district's evaluation process and noted
that student attendance as another neans of measuring student
growh. He said the challenge for wevaluating all staff on
student growth may not appear to be as difficult as it first
appeared. He explained that ACSA believed that wusing student
growh for evaluating was the fairest approach and fully
supported the program

8:40: 07 AM

CHAIR STEVENS recounted his experiences as a school board
president in the 1980's and noted a reoccurring admnistrative
i ssue regarding teacher evaluations. He explained an issue where
unsati sfactory teachers were retained due to the fact that do
one had tine to evaluate. He stated that the key was finding a
way to properly evaluate teachers. He noted that it was a big-
step to go from the current evaluation process to the one that
DEED desi red.

DR.  JOHNSON answered that it was a big-step. He said he
acknowl edged the inportance of teachers in the classroom and
noted teachers as the nost inportant ingredient. He explained
that Al aska's uniqueness had been used as an excuse to settle
for nmediocrity and that was not acceptable. He stated that ACSA
was commtted to work with legislators and departnent heads to
make the program work. He remarked that ACSA woul d probably be

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -11- January 16, 2013



back in the future to review the program and recomend
i ncrenental changes.

SENATOR HUGA NS said the proposed system was one of nany that
had been inplenented over tine. He noted the highlighted
attribute of the program was on teacher quality. He asked how a
new teacher and the quality of a person be evaluated prior to
entering a classroom

8:43: 06 AM

DR. JOHNSON answered that Senator Huggi ns' question was a puzzle
that had to be figured out. He explained that university
committees were attenpting to work wth kindergarten through
grade 12 to try and build a transition that nade sense so that
graduates were ready for the job that they were trained to do.
He noted that graduates would be counted on to possess basic
uni versal skills or they would not receive their credentials. He
said the question on the other end was how to assist famlies in
sending the very best child to school. He asserted that there
were so many things that determned a child s opportunity for
success in Jlater |life and noted the inpact started at
concepti on.

CHAI R STEVENS announced that the commttee would be neeting with
university officials to address their devel opment of teachers.

SENATOR GARDNER addressed words Dr. Johnson wused such as:
costly, tinme consumng, conplicated, and mxed results. She
asked if Dr. Johnson was referring specifically to using student
grow h as an el enent of teacher eval uations.

DR. JOHNSON answered that he was referring specifically to the
new system that was being proposed. He noted that evaluations in
the past may have been a have-to requirenent that no one placed
a |l ot of value on.

SENATOR GARDNER asked if the current system was effective and
served everyone wel | .

DR. JOHNSON responded that changes were in order. He noted that
many of his nmenbers believed student growh was a worthy el enent
of teacher evaluations that should be explored and inproved
upon.

8:45:51 AM

ROB THOVASON, Pr esi dent, Al aska Counci | of School
Adm nistrators, stated his appreciation to Comm ssioner Hanley

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -12- January 16, 2013



to involve superintendents in the process and the counci
strongly supported inter-rater reliability. He explained that
inter-rater reliability addressed Senator Dunleavy's question
regardi ng conpetency tracking for teachers and admnistrators
who noved to different districts. He noted that mastering inter-
rater reliability would be a huge step forward. He said the
council was commtted to the evaluation process and its
i npl ementation. He noted that constructive feedback designed to
hel p educators and students was strongly supported. He remarked
that the ACSA was |ooking forward to the guidance and technica
support from DEED. He noted that the council welconed consortia
and tenpl ate devel opment by larger districts to support smaller
districts. He agreed wth Conmssioner Hanley that it was
difficult to nove forward with the present assessnent system He
explained that the council |ooked forward to a vertically
aligned assessnent and a clear understanding of the standards
He noted that courage was required and the superintendents were
conmmtted to nmove forward. He cited one caveat t hat
superintendents strongly recomended that the end product be
technol ogy based and nobile. He advised that the program not be
paper and pencil based. He noted that available technol ogy
should be wused to make the assessnment system user-friendly
across multiple platforns.

8:48: 35 AM
SENATOR GARDNER asked what the current systenis flaws were.

MR. THOVASON answered that the enphasis on accountability woul d
be a good thing. He noted that the current system nade it
difficult and <costly to help a teacher inprove or find
alternative enploynent. He explained that the process was
cunbersone and a | ot of work.

8:50: 20 AM

CARL ROSE, Executive Director, Association of Alaska School
Boards (ASSB), explained that it was inportant for school boards
to adopt sound public policy that could be inplenented with the
| east anount of friction. He stated that living in a litigious
society presented |egal action possibilities when questionable
j ob action decisions were nade.

MR ROSE said he at t ended t he 2012 Labor - Managenent
Col | aboration Conference and noted that the neeting was hosted
by US. Secretary of Education. He explained that teacher
evaluation was not a nmgjor issue of contention at the
conference. He asserted that people understood that student
achi evenent and evaluation was not a bad idea. He stated that

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 13- January 16, 2013



the question was how much weight would be given to teacher
eval uati ons. He referred to the eight content standards
presented by Conm ssioner Hanley; seven where directional inputs
and the eighth standard neasured student growh. He noted that
the final standard was the only one that would be neasured and
woul d account for 20 to 50 percent of the eval uation.

8:53:24 AM

MR. ROSE declared that the eighth standard would |essen the
other standards if it noved to 50 percent of the evaluation in
2019. He said he agreed wth Dr. Johnson that the performance
standards program would be tweaked over tine. He stated that
using student performance data was appropriate. He explained
that it was sound public policy to decide what degree of gravity
would be given to the student achievenent elenent and what
effect would it have on the Al aska educational system He asked
if the state-directed decisions would ultimately have to be
defended in court. He asserted that teachers and admi nistrators
did not see student achi evenent based assessnents as a probl em
He noted that the issue was placing a high priority on student
achievenment in regard to enploynent via an eval uation system He
stated that the AASB did not have a position on the program He
decl ared that |ocal school boards would be put in harms way if
the state did not provide a clear direction.

CHAIR STEVENS responded that M. Rose brought up nany
interesting issues regarding the connection to enploynent. He
asked if teacher evaluations would have an inpact on sal ari es.

MR ROSE replied that he had not previously considered the
guestion. He noted his belief was that everything ultimtely
came down to salaries. He stated that an enployee right was the
i ssue and not salaries. He explained that an enpl oyer had better
have a good reason as to why an enpl oyee would not be retained.
He declared that wunsound reasons wuld Ilead to placing
instructional dollars into litigation.

8:56:47 AM

JOHN PILE, Executive Director, Alaska Association of Elenentary
School Principals, noted that he had been principal in Fairbanks
for 30 years and was currently retired. He introduced John
Pot hast as the prinmary spokesman.

JOHN POTHAST, President, Alaska Association of Elenmentary Schoo
Principals, stated that noving towards nultiple mneasures had
been advisable since the No Child Left Behind Act was reliance
based on one day of testing. He noted that noving to the student

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -14- January 16, 2013



grow h nodel was a trenendous direction to go in. He asserted
t hat principals understood and respected the fact t hat
accountability was a part of our lives and they had no issues
with that. He stated that teachers should be accountable for the
huge task of educating children and accountability was required
to show it was being acconplished. He said DEED had defined
their "sandbox"™ and their job was to figure out how it would
wor k. He addressed his concern that the nultiple neasures were
not defined and noted that a ot of work was required to clarify
the neasures. He advised against prematurely presenting
undefi ned nmeasures that could |lead to negative repercussions. He
announced that he was a proponent for inter-rater reliability
and the inportance to consistently evaluate teachers throughout
the state. He said a potential problem could occur if districts
used unstandardi zed assessnents that were challenging to conpare
with other districts.

9: 02: 07 AM

MR. POTHAST stated that he was an advocate of using the growth-
nmodel , but expressed his concern that there was no definition
for growth. He explained how the Kenai School District used
Pearson's AlIMSweb® as a wuniversal screening of student's
performance and growth. He asked what the appropriate |evel of
growh was and stated his concern for a potential problem if
i ndi vidual districts were left to decide. He expressed his hope
that a district would conme forward and announce their findings
for appropriate student growh |evels.

He said he was concerned that 50 percent of the student |earning
data would be wused for evaluations in overall performance
ratings. He noted that the Kenai School District wused four
domai ns for teacher evaluations and student |earning data would
becone the fifth domain. He stated that using 50 percent of the
student learning data would overenphasize the domain. He
addressed the proficiency regulation regarding an allowance for
a single Basic rating and asked what would happen if the Basic
rating occurred in the area of student Ilearning data. He
asserted that half of a teacher's proficiency evaluation could
be rated as Basic.

CHAI R STEVENS conmmended M. Pothast's for raising inportant
issues on districts evaluating differently, teachers noving to
other districts, and student growth nonitoring.

9: 05: 52 AM

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 15- January 16, 2013



ANDRE' LAYRAL, Executive Director, Al aska Association of
Secondary School Principals, asked that Adam Mkel ke and Rod
Morrison to testify first.

9:06: 29 AM

ADAM MOKELKE, President, Al aska Association of Secondary School
Principals (AASSP), said he agreed with Dr. Johnson's and M.
Pot hast's statenents on not being afraid of accountability for
student achi evenent. He addressed Conm ssion Hanley's statenent
on training and cited training as a critical point for AASSP. He
commented that Senator Dunleavy's question on funding would play
a role in supporting proper training for effectively
i npl enenting the new evaluations. He said he agreed with M.
Pothast in the use of nultiple nmeasures rather than using one
neasure and the focus on student growh rather than neeting an
arbitrary test score. He said AASSP would ask that nultiple
measures of student l|earning be defined and identified. He
explained the inportance of having consi stent nmeasur es
t hroughout the state. He asked if the neasures would be
identified on a state level and how nmuch |ocal control would be
allowed. He voiced AASSP's concern on how the new evaluation
system would affect |ow perform ng schools and specifically the
i mpact on rural schools. He noted his concern for the effect on
recruitnment and training for rural schools. He asserted that
teaching candidates mght prefer to work in school districts
that have nore resources, access, and educators to work wth
st udent s.

CHAI R STEVENS replied that he was al so concerned on the possible
inmpact on small villages. He addressed the possibility of
teachers choosing sone schools over another and the inpact on
school staffing.

9:10: 34 AM

ROD MORRI SON, President-elect, Al aska Association of Secondary
School Principals, said inplementation and training had to be
consi stent throughout the state. He asserted that the current
eval uation system was inconsistent and conmunication between
districts was inperative. He noted that accountability was very
i mportant.

9:12:16 AM

MR. LAYRAL said AASSP's national association identified six
i nportant domains for principal evaluation. He stated that any
affective evaluation system for principals wuld have to
recogni ze a variety of roles and the regional district's effect
on admnistrative roles. He said AASSP believed that it was

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 16- January 16, 2013



inmportant that the responsibility, authority, and autonony be
taken into consideration when linking student perfornmance to
adm nistrative evaluations. He noted that AASSP's nationa
associ ation recogni zed professional growh and |earning, schoo
pl anning and progress, school «culture, professional qualities
and i nstructional | eader shi p, st akehol der support and
engagenent, and student growh and achievenent. He stated that
focusing 50 percent of the evaluation on student achievenment was
going to be sonmething that would take a lot of work. He affirned
that no one would shirk their responsibility and accountability.
He noted that the enphasis on one domain would have an inpact on
adm nistrators having time in shaping a school's culture,
devel oping their own professional growh and |earning, being
responsible for the professional growh and |earning of
teachers, and pl anning and i npl enenti ng prograns.

MR. LAYRAL said there were a |lot of nontraditional subjects
beyond reading, witing, and nath. He questioned how teachers
for nontraditional subjects would be neasured and held
accountable. He stated that flexibility in evaluations should be
considered for schools that had a high turnover rate for
teachers and adm ni strators.

9:16: 22 AM

JOHN  ALCANTRA, Director, Gover nnent Rel at i ons, Nat i onal
Educati on Association-Al aska (NEAA), announced that 400 NEAA
del egates were neeting in Anchorage during the upcom ng weekend
to set education policy for 2013. He noted that LaDawn Druce
from NEAA would address the conmittee. He explained that M.
Druce also served as the President of the Kenai Peninsula
Educati on Associ ati on.

9:18: 28 AM

LADAWN DRUCE, Vice President, National Education Association-
Al aska (NEAA), said she had testified before the Al aska State
Board of Education & Early Developnent regarding the new
eval uation regulation. She explained her involvenment with the
Kenai Peninsul a Borough School District's process of inproving
their teacher evaluation nodel over three years ago. She
announced that NEAA had a vested interest in leading their
pr of essi on. She said NEAA welcomed a candid and honest
conversation to inprove teacher effectiveness and student
success. She noted that the upcom ng NEAA del egate neeting would
address the issues with teacher evaluation. She stated that one
of NEAA's main concerns with the regulation pertained to the
stat ute:

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -17- January 16, 2013



4 AAC 19.010 PURPOCSES AND SCOPE OF EVALUATIONS

subsection (g), A teacher, admnistrator, or specia

service provider who receives a performance eval uation
rating of unsatisfactory on one or nore of the content
standards or other criteria for which evaluation is
requi red under this section has not nmet the district
performance standards. By statute a teacher would
t hereby be placed on a plan of inprovenent.

9:21: 07 AM

M5. DRUCE explained that NEAA's concern was aligned with M.
Rose's prior statenent on the issue of placing a higher enphasis
on one standard. She stated that when the student |earning data
standard becones 20 percent of a teacher's or admnistrator's
overall performance rating, in actuality it could becone 100
percent due to the statute definition from 4 AAC 19.010(g). She
expl ai ned that any standard that was deened unsatisfactory would
result in a plan of inprovenent and the possibly of termnation.
She affirmed M. Rose's concern for enploynent type issues and
how t he verbiage was witten in the regul ation.

She said there were nmany factors which contributed to student
success that were beyond the control of the classroom teacher.

She said she appreciated Comm ssioner Hanley's opening coments
and noted that many of her previous concerns were addressed. She
explained that factors outside of a teacher's control weighed
heavily on the success of a student in a classroom She detailed
outside factors as: poverty, lack of supervision at hones,

negl ect, abuse, and the potentially of parents not valuing
education. She said the regulations stated that a district
eval uation of a teacher shall provide information and analysis
that hel ps a teacher grow professionally. She asserted that NEAA
supported a professional growh nodel for its educators. She
stated that the lack of recognition that a new to the profession
teacher or a teacher with a major change of assignnent, may be
considered Basic in many or potentially all of the standards.

She noted that the lack of recognition did not value the aspect
of a growing professional. She explained that the Kena

Peni nsul a School District used the Danielson Goup's nodel as a
foundation for teacher evaluations and noted how new teachers
were classified as Basic due to their stage of |earning the
craft. She advised that the way a Basic rating was given my
have an unintended consequence of putting everyone in a
Proficient or Distinguished category when not deserved. She
stated that the hope was DEED woul d continue to involve NEAA in
the discussions. She affirned NEAA' s desire to support a
positive change to a systemthat definitely could be better.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 18- January 16, 2013



SENATOR GARDNER asked if Ms. Duce was saying that because of the
potential consequences of Basic ratings, there would be sone
sort of ratings inflation to avoid those consequences.

MS. DRUCE answered yes.

9:25:41 AM

TODD POAGE, Superintendent, Al aska Gateway School District, said
it was inmportant to have funding, training, and consistency
across the state.

9:26: 29 AM

CHRI' S REI TAN, Superintendent, Galena Gty School District, said
it was inportant for the comrittee to be aware of what was
behind the push for the new evaluation regulations. He stated
that the real push behind the regulations was the flexibility
wai ver from the No Child Left Behind (NCLB) guidelines. He
expl ai ned that DEED had submtted a waiver fromthe current NCLB
gui delines and noted that teacher and adm nistrative eval uations
were a key conponent in the application. He explained that if
the state had not applied for a NCLB waiver, every school would
have been considered to be a failing-school. He noted that NCLB
woul d have required that every student would have to be rated as
Proficient in all areas of testing by the end of 2014. He
coomented that the state in doing an outstanding job in
developing the new standards and noted that devel opi ng
accountability in student growh was outstanding. He stated that
the topic that was discussed in the conmttee neeting was a
l[ittle nebulous in regards to how everything would be built into
an evaluation tool for principals and teachers. He said he was
nervous that the state had not fully noved into the new
standards, assessnents were not established to be aligned with
the new standards, and sone of the student achievenent dialog
bordered in the grey-area because the neaning of the standards
woul d not be known until an assessnent item was attached. He
advi sed that everyone involved in the process be cautious and
prudent. He expressed the inportance of building flexibility
into the systemto allow for changes.

CHAI R STEVENS stated that the issue addressed during the neeting
was an inportant topic. He noted that he wuld talk to
i ndi vidual commttee nmenbers to find out what direction to go.

SENATOR GARDNER asked the Conm ssioner Hanley if the state had

invented the new regulations or if a tenplate had been foll owed
from ot her states.

SENATE EDC COW TTEE -19- January 16, 2013



9:30: 57 AM

COWMM SSI ONER HANLEY answered that over 40 states had inplenmented
some version of tying teacher evaluations to student | earning.
He said DEED had gleaned the best from other states and
devel oped one that worked for Al aska.

CHAIR STEVENS stated that Senator Gardner's question was
inportant. He said there were issues that the commttee should
cover further on the entire subject.

9:31:21 AM

There being no further business to cone before the Senate
Education Commttee, Chair Stevens adjourned the neeting at 9:31
a. m

SENATE EDC COW TTEE - 20- January 16, 2013



